The Corporation of the Township of Malahide

June 2, 2022 – 7:30p.m.

Virtual Meeting - https://youtu.be/nKskAJZhCr8

Due to COVID 19 and Public Health concerns, the Malahide Township Council met at the Springfield & Area Community Services Building, at 51221 Ron McNeil Line, Springfield, at 7:30p.m. in order to allow for physical distancing. No public attendance was permitted. The following were present:

Council: Mayor D. Mennill, Councillor M. Widner, Councillor M. Moore, Councillor R. Cerna, and Councillor C. Glinski.

Staff: Clerk A. Adams, Director of Public Works M. Sweetland, Director of Finance A. Boylan and Director of Fire and Emergency Services J. Spoor.

Council via Zoom: N/A

Staff via Zoom: Chief Administrative Officer A. Betteridge

Absent: Deputy Mayor D. Giguère and Councillor S. Lewis

CALL TO ORDER:

Mayor Mennill took the Chair and called the meeting to order at 7:30p.m.

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST and the General Nature thereof:

Councillor Widner disclosed a pecuniary interest with respect to Council Agenda item E – Request for Improvement – Maginnis Drain. The nature of the conflict being that a Junior Partner at Spriet Associates is an immediate relative of his.

MINUTES:

No. 22-214

Moved By: Max Moore Seconded By: Rick Cerna

THAT the minutes of the regular meeting of the Council held on May 19, 2022, be adopted as printed and circulated.

PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS/PETITIONS:

 Meeting to Consider – Glinski Drain relating to property at Parts Lots 23, Concession 3, in the Township of Malahide

The Mayor provided a statement in regards to the Meeting to Consider the Glinski Drain was deferred as a result of quorum and that it will be rescheduled for the next meeting.

- <u>Public Meeting – Zoning By-law Amendment – Applicants Daniel and Michael Bogart, J Grant Burks Farm LTD. and John Burks relating to property Part of Lot 9, Concession 10 and Part 1 of RP 11R-8266, 50260 & 50264 Lyons Line</u>

No. 22-215

Moved By: Mark Widner

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT the Public Meeting concerning the Zoning By-law Amendment Application of Application of Daniel and Michael Bogart, and J. Grant Burks Farms LTD and John Benjamin Burks, relating two properties located at Part of Lot 9, Concession 10 in the former Township of South Dorchester, and being 50260 and 50264 Lyons Line; be called to order at 7:31 p.m

Carried

Mayor Mennill advised that the purpose of this Public Meeting is to consider an application to amend the zoning of the subject property 50260 and 50264 Lyons Line.

Mayor Mennill asked the Clerk to advise and confirm on the method and date of notice given for this meeting. The Clerk advised that this public meeting was advertised in the Aylmer Express for two consecutive weeks. In addition, affected property owners within 120 meters were sent a notice by prepaid first-class mail that was posted at least twenty days prior to this meeting.

Mayor Mennill requested that CAO Betteridge provide an overview of the application. CAO Betteridge provided an overview of the zoning application noting it is being processed on behalf of the property owners by the Township in order to correct the zoning as it relates to the two subject properties. The need for this "housekeeping" amendment arose when it was identified by Staff that the existing zoning for the subject properties is both misaligned. The amendment will place both properties into their respective "correct" zones so that they can both be used in their rightful manner.

Mayor Mennill asked if any Council Members wished to make any comments regarding the application. Councillor Widner inquired about the property on Crossley Hunter Line. CAO Betteridge clarified that they are demolishing an existing dwelling and creating a new dwelling. Councillor Widner further inquired if that lot could be severed as well.

CAO Betteridge noted that this could only be severed in accordance with a surplus farm house severance application and the dwelling would need to be in existence for a period of time before this could be done. However, from discussions with the owner's there is no intention of severing this property but rather to build a new house for themselves.

No. 22-216

Moved By: Rick Cerna Seconded By: Max Moore

THAT the Public Meeting concerning the Zoning By-law Amendment Application of Application of Daniel and Michael Bogart, and J. Grant Burks Farms LTD and John Benjamin Burks, relating two properties located at Part of Lot 9, Concession 10 in the former Township of South Dorchester, and being 50260 and 50264 Lyons Line; be adjourned and the Council reconvene at 7:38 p.m

Carried

No. 22-217

Moved By: Rick Cerna

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT Report No. DS-22-25 entitled "Housekeeping Zoning By-law Amendment Application of Daniel and Michael Bogart, and J. Grant Burks Farms LTD and John Benjamin Burks" be received;

AND THAT the Housekeeping Zoning By-law Amendment Application No. D14-Z05-22 of relating to the two properties located at Part of Lot 9, Concession 10 in the former Township of South Dorchester, and being 50260 and 50264 Lyons Line, BE APPROVED for the reasons set out in this Report.

Carried

No. 22-218

Moved By: Max Moore

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT By-law No. 22-35 being a By-law to amend Zoning By-law No. 18-22 insofar as it relates to the properties owned by Daniel and Michael Bogart, and J. Grant Burks Farms LTD and John Benjamin Burks, located at Part of Lot 9, Concession 10 in the former Township of South Dorchester, be given first, second and third readings, and properly signed and sealed.

<u>Public Hearing – Minor Variance Application</u> – Applicant, Wendy D'Angelo (Authorized Agent: Zelinka Priamo Ltd. c/o Matt Campbell), relating to property at Lots 105 through 110 on Registered Plan 78, Village of Springfield, Township of Malahide, 11789 Superior Street

No. 22-219

Moved By: Mark Widner Seconded By: Rick Cerna

THAT the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Malahide be called to order at 7:39p.m. and that Mayor Dave Mennill be appointed Chairperson for the "Committee of Adjustment".

Carried

Chair Mennill advised that the purpose of this Public Meeting is to consider an application for a Minor Variance as submitted by Wendy D'Angelo relating to property at Lots 105 through 110 on Registered Plan 78, Village of Springfield, Township of Malahide.

Mayor Mennill requested that Eric Steele of Monteith Brown Planning Consultants (MBPC) provide an overview of the application. Mr. Steele stated that the application is to grant relief from the established building line calculated to be 2.2 metres (approximately 7 feet) based on the average of the existing front yard depths of the two abutting properties and minimum rear yard depth requirement of 7.5 metres (approximately 24 feet) in order to construct a single-detached dwelling on the southern portion of the subject property. The effect would allow a new single-detached dwelling to be situated 1.6 metres (approximately 5 feet) from the front lot line and 7 metres from the rear lot line. The subject lot depth is shallow compared to other lots in the neighbourhood but the lots surrounding this one are more shallow than the typical lot. The placement will create a uniform street and provide separation from the road so that it can be maintained. It should also be noted that the roads department has no concern with this proposal.

Chair Mennill asked if any comments were received and the Clerk advised there were comments received from a neighbour with some concerns regarding the proposed house in respect to the type of house, location, privacy etc. and staff did address their questions and this neighbour should be in attendance if they had further comments.

Chair Mennill asked if any person in attendance wished to make any comments. Amanda Ivanyshyn whose property abuts this proposed minor variance had further inquiries in regards to privacy and fencing and how this proposal would affect them. Mr. Steele noted that regarding privacy that the subject lot creation was permitted as a building lot earlier this year and under the Zoning By-law would permit a residential house. The backyard proposal is minimally reduced from the required setbacks and this is not anticipated to have a significant impact. In respect to fencing there is existing fence on the rear of the property and if there were additional concerns the committee

could require an agreement but given the minor nature of this variance, MBPC doesn't foresee there to be significant impacts on the adjacent property.

Mayor Mennill asked if any Committee members wished to make any comments regarding the application and there were none.

No. 22-220

Moved By: Max Moore

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT Report No. DS-22-26 entitled "Application for Minor Variance – Joe & Wendy D'Angelo' be received;

AND THAT the Application for Minor Variance – Joe & Wendy D'Angelo, relating to the property located in Plan 78, Lots 108 to 110 and being part 2 on 11R-1568, be approved for the reasons set out herein.

Carried

No. 22-221

Moved By: Rick Cerna

Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT the Committee of Adjustment for the Township of Malahide be adjourned and the Council meeting reconvene at 7:47p.m.

Carried

<u>Presentation – Derek Richmond</u> – Expanding Services and Protecting Public Post Offices

Derek Richmond provided a presentation regarding expanding services and protecting public post offices by utilizing services that are not currently offered in communities that post offices are located in. These initiatives would support rural post offices and provide extended services to the community.

Mayor Mennill thanked Mr. Richmond for his presentation and noted that a lot of small towns do have post offices but no financial institutions and that would be an enhancement to small towns.

Mayor Mennill stated that the presentation would be received and that if Council chose to support this initiative it would be done so in the correspondence section of the meeting. Mayor Mennill asked if any members had questions in regards to the presentation.

Councillor Moore inquired about the use of these facilities for banking facilities and how they intended to be protected against vandalism and robberies in these rural communities. Mr. Richmond stated Canada Post has partnered already with TD Canada

Trust and that type of safety and security training would be implemented for Canada Post staff.

Councillor Cerna inquired about how much profit Canada Post makes in a year as this initiative is quite ambitious and offers repetitive services. Mr. Richmond said Canada Post has lost money in the first quarters of last year with problems around COVID but some of these ideas are to expand services and prevent these losses. Councillor Cerna further noted that a lot of these services are available already and if currently losing money that this may not be the right time for these initiatives. Mr. Richmond stated that Canada Post is a crown corporation and relies on its own funding to build these revenue tools up. Councillor Cerna noted that the proposal if supported is for the Township to pressure the Federal Government for funding so it still requires funding from the government. Mr. Richmond said that the Federal Government can mandate services for Canada Post to offer which will increase services and potentially increase funds. He noted that these services could provide additional revenues while bringing services back and creating community enhancement.

Councillor Widner noted that this proposal brings forth innovative ideas and wondering if a business plan has been created. Mr. Richmond noted that he is a coordinator for the campaign and this group has been pressuring the corporation and the Federal Government to bring in these services and any financial plan is done through the corporation. Canada Post has slowly started implementing this campaign but he is unaware of any financial reports regarding any of the successes or costs.

No. 22-222

Moved By: Max Moore

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT the presentation from Derek Richmond, Ontario Region Coordinator for the Canadian Union of Postal Workers, regarding expanding services and protecting public post offices, be received.

Carried

Mayor Mennill thanked Mr. Richmond for his presentation and he retired from the meeting.

REPORTS:

Director of Public Works

- 2021 Road Needs Study

Councillor Cerna inquired where the Carter Road bridge is located. Director Sweetland responded that it was located on Carter Road south of Pressey Line.

Councillor Widner asked if staff was satisfied with the report and if the Township has

enough finances for these projected repairs. Director Sweetland noted these reports are static. The inspections took place in 2021 and they are only as good as when the drive by happened. Fortunately, the asset management regulations require these condition assessments be less than two years old so every two years staff can plan and be prepared. At the current time the asset management plan would be developed from the figures of this report but then every annual budget cycle staff can see if any further needs are pending for upcoming years. He noted that staff are satisfied with this report which allows for a long-term projection but can be adjusted over annual budget cycles.

No. 22-223

Moved By: Mark Widner

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT Report No. PW-22-34 entitled "2021 Road Needs Study" be received;

AND THAT Council adopt the "2021 State of the Infrastructure and Asset Management Plan for Roads" report prepared by 4 Roads Management Services;

AND THAT Staff be directed to utilize the above-noted report to inform long-term asset management recommendations on the Township's road network.

Carried

- Request for Improvement – Maginnis Drain

Councillor Widner declared a conflict of interest with respect to Council Agenda item E – Request for Improvement – Maginnis Drain. He retired from the meeting and abstained from all discussions and voting on the matter.

No. 22-224

Moved By: Chester Glinski Seconded By: Max Moore

THAT Report No. PW-22-41 entitled "Request for Improvement – Maginnis Drain" be received;

AND THAT Mike Devos, P. Eng., of Spriet Associates, be appointed to prepare an Engineer's Report for this petition.

Carried

Councillor Widner returned to his seat at the Council table.

- Ontario Police College Memorandum of Understanding for Kitchen Use

No. 22-225

Moved By: Rick Cerna Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT Report No. PW-22-37 entitled "Ontario Police College Memorandum of Understanding for Kitchen Use" be received;

AND THAT Township of Malahide Council directs the Facilities Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Ontario Police College for contingent use of the Malahide Community Place Kitchen Facilities.

Carried

- Springfield Veteran Banner Request

Councillor Glinski inquired if the committee is aware of the cost to place the flags on hydro posts. Director Sweetland stated that the committee is aware of the exact costs and that the information was forwarded to them for review.

No. 22-226

Moved By: Max Moore Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT Report No. PW-22-31 entitled "Springfield Banner Request" be received;

AND THAT the Council accept the recommendations from staff to proceed with this project based on the installation of the brackets and banners on the Hydro poles on Ron McNeil Line;

AND THAT the Municipal Staff be directed to work with the "Honour Our Veterans Committee" on the installation of the brackets and banners.

Carried

- RFP Results - Carter Road Bridge Rehabilitation Request for Proposal

Councillor Glinski sought clarification with the terminology used in the report in reference to RFP Results – Carter Road Bridge Rehabilitation Request for Proposal. Councillor Glinski noted that it almost sounds like it should be rehabilitated from this statement not just an engineer coming in to tell what needs to be done. Director Sweetland noted that prior to understanding what the scope of work is required to rehabilitate the structure an engineer is required to come up with that design component. Staff had the Ontario Structure Inspection Manual (OSIM) consultant

review it to ensure it wasn't at immediate risk of collapse and were advised it wasn't. Staff then proposed this method per the OSIM consultant's recommendation that the Township have an engineer undertake a design component of it so a construction ability can occur.

No. 22-227

Moved By: Rick Cerna Seconded By: Max Moore

THAT Report No. PW-22-40 entitled "RFP Results – Carter Road Bridge Rehabilitation Request for Proposal" be received;

AND THAT the proposal for the Carter Road Bridge Rehabilitation be awarded to Vallee Consulting Engineers, Architects and Planners of Simcoe, Ontario in the amount of \$24,955.70 (plus HST);

AND THAT the Mayor and Clerk be authorized to enter into an agreement with Vallee Consulting Engineers, Architects and Planners for the purpose of completing the Carter Road Bridge Rehabilitation.

Carried

Councillor Widner brought forth a request in regards to the Aylmer Fair Board for required track maintenance work for the upcoming tractor pull.

Councillor Cerna inquired if we have we have a contingency fund if there is money left over for situations like this. Director of Finance Boylan stated the Township does have this contingency fund and is currently working through the 2021 financial results with the auditor. Staff's recommendation would be when the final 2021 report comes forth that we use those funds to pay for this request.

Mayor Mennill stated there were a couple resolutions for this proposal and inquired what an estimated cost may be for the work required. Director Sweetland stated the possible resolutions being that they could provide a specific amount for the maintenance work or one that doesn't exceed a certain amount. He noted another option would be that the Township could provide the service and invoice the Aylmer Fair Board for the work and they could then seek relief for the invoiced amount.

No. 22-228

Moved By: Mark Widner Seconded By: Rick Cerna

THAT the request of the Aylmer Fair Board be supported and that the Township provide the required maintenance work of the track.

Clerk

- 2022 Municipal Election – Establishment of Joint Compliance Audit Committee

Councillor Glinski inquired about the discrepancy in the honorarium from the report to the draft By-law. Clerk Adams noted that this was a clerical error as a result of back and forth conversations between the organizing committee and that in fact the \$125.00 honorarium in the By-law was the correct amount.

No. 22-229

Moved By: Rick Cerna

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT Report CLERK-22-07 entitled "2022 Municipal Election – Establishment of Joint Compliance Audit Committee" be received for information; and,

THAT Council considers giving three readings to the By-law establishing an Election Joint Compliance Audit Committee for the 2022 Municipal Election in accordance with the Municipal elections Act, 1996, as amended.

CAO

- Bill 27, Working for Workers Act, 2021 (Disconnecting from Work)

Councillor Glinski understands the concept of disconnecting from work but wanted to confirm how this will affect after hours meetings like Council meetings as it over and above these hours. CAO Betteridge noted that Council meetings are apart of certain job descriptions and this is normal for those roles and that won't change. The intention of this policy is that there is normal responsibilities of every job description and some positions are not an 8:30pm to 4:30pm position. For instance, Public Works, Fire or CAO roles may require time sensitive or emergency components that the policy still allows for this contact to occur.

Councillor Cerna doesn't believe this legislation is required. When the work day is done it's done. He noted that a Councillor position is always available for constituents to contact them. We have a good staff and if you factor in the time at work versus time at home there is enough time to disconnect from work. Mayor Mennill noted that this policy is more for staff than it is for Council and that staff need to be disconnected. In emergencies, certain staff are always on call but if an issue on Friday can wait until Monday they should be allowed to shut down on the weekend. Councillor Cerna noted that he believed that these types of frivolous requests aren't occurring and that this government legislation isn't required. Mayor Mennill said that unfortunately there are some unreasonable people who will expect an answer at any time of day.

Councillor Widner noted that this legislation only applies to an organization that has 25 or more people on staff. If you have a smaller organization with less staff than 25 they aren't covered and that isn't fair especially as they likely require it more. Councillor Widner noted the legislation doesn't cover enough and isn't fair. He proposed a scenario of finding something at night and if an email regarding the issue is allowed with this policy. CAO Betteridge clarified that the intent is that discretion is given based on the situation. For instance, if the pot hole is significant and can create damage, it would warrant communication versus if the situation is minor than it can wait until the morning. CAO Betteridge noted that any traffic issues or safety concerns Public Works would want to know as soon as possible. Councillor Widner noted he would report it because if he knows about it and doesn't he could be liable. Councillor Cerna noted that what he is hearing is that if it's urgent you call if it's not you wait and that is what we do now. Mayor Mennill noted that this legislation just doesn't apply to us but to everyone. Councillor Cerna noted that is part of the problem with legislation like this as its blankets the entire Province.

No. 22-230

Moved By: Chester Glinski Seconded By: Max Moore

THAT Report No. HR-22-04 entitled "Bill 27, Working for Workers Act, 2021 (Disconnecting from Work)" be received.

AND THAT HR Policy B-3.5 Disconnecting from Work is approved.

Carried

CORRESPONDENCE:

No. 22-231

Moved By: Max Moore

Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT the Municipality of Shuniah resolution requesting the province increase funding for the Rural and Northern Education Fund, a review of the education funding formula be undertaken and that consultation from school boards and community groups occur prior to the pupil accommodation review guide being developed be supported.

Carried

No. 22-232

Moved By: Max Moore

Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT the potential initiatives brought forward by the Delivering Community Power Campaign for service expansion at Canada Post be supported in principle.

Carried

No. 22-233

Moved By: Max Moore

Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT the correspondence from the Town of Aylmer in regards to a fundraising challenge for the Aylmer-Malahide Museum & Archives Capital Campaign be received;

AND THAT staff direct the Aylmer-Malahide Museum to submit a grant application through the Township's grant application process for 2023.

Carried

No. 22-234

Moved By: Max Moore Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT the following correspondence be noted and filed:

- 1. Association of Municipalities of Ontario Watch File dated May 19, 2022 and May 26, 2022. (Pages C2-7)
- 2. The Corporation of the City of Cambridge Resolution request be sent to the Region of Waterloo on behalf of Cambridge Council for free public transportation on Election Days. (Pages C8-9)
- 3. Corporation of the City of Brantford Resolution requesting the immediate release to the Survivors' Secretariat, of all documents in the possession of the Government of Canada or the Government of Ontario and the Anglican Church related to the former Mohawk Institute Residential School now located on Six Nations of the Grand River Territory, within the geographic boundaries of the City of Brantford. (Pages C10-12)
- 4. Southwestern Public Health Notice of changes coming to COVID-19 vaccination clinics in Elgin, Oxford, and St. Thomas. (Page C17)

Carried

OTHER BUSINESS:

- Springfield Family Fun Day Committee - Request for Event Support

No. 22-235

Moved By: Rick Cerna

Seconded By: Chester Glinski

THAT the 2022 Springfield Family Fun Day event being held on June 18, 2022 in Springfield be supported;

AND THAT, in recognition of the community benefit, the Municipal Staff be authorized and directed to confirm 'Affiliated Municipal Groups Liability' insurance coverage for the Springfield Family Fun Day event and its Organizing Committee.

Carried

- Official Plan Amendment No. 20

Councillor Widner inquired about the Notice of Decision regarding the Official Plan Amendment (OPA) No. 20 that the County has passed and why the changes now with the Amish settlements. Mayor Mennill stated that in the past Malahide endorsed the smaller parcels and Land Division passed it with the Province never objecting. CAO Betteridge noted the County wasn't changing anything. The Township recently adopted an OPA and sent the documentation to the County for final approval. Monteith Brown

Planning Consultants recommended that the Township have a policy included to allow the allowance for undersized farm parcels for the Amish community. The County spoke with the Province in regards to the Provincial Policy Statement and the concern is allowing a certain farm parcel size for a religious identifying group and another size for others. CAO Betteridge noted that the Malahide Zoning By-law does have a minimum size of 50 acres and this isn't changing. The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) doesn't specify minimum farm parcel size but is general to farm sizes common in the area. There are planning arguments that can be made that suggest that a smaller size could be obtained and is appropriate but what the Province doesn't want to see is that it be written into the Township Official Plan document and have the double standard.

CAO Betteridge noted that he isn't concerned from a planning perspective and provided three options that Council could chose from in respect to the notice of the decision.

Councillor Widner inquired if CAO Betteridge was finding that the Province held the power of the PPS over your head but never actually comment. CAO Betteridge said he's starting to see that a bit and that the Province used to be very active in local rural planning as they were the approval authority but have downloaded those responsibilities. The Province tries not to get involved in local planning matters but if there are glaring issues relating to the PPS they are starting to intervene to ensure conformity.

CAO Betteridge also noted that the County of Elgin is going through its own Official Plan review and it may be wise for Malahide Council to advise the County to protect the ability for the horse drawn community to create parcels of a certain size.

Councillor Widner would like a resolution sent to the County to let them know the Township isn't completely satisfied with this decision to protect the Amish Community.

CAO Betteridge requested that a five-minute recess be taken so that staff could prepare an adjusted resolution from the discussions that had occurred.

No. 22-236

Moved By: Mark Widner Seconded By: Rick Cerna

THAT a five-minute recess be granted to allow staff the opportunity to create an alternative resolution in regards to Official Plan Amendment No. 20

Carried

Proceeding a five-minute recess, a resolution was proposed encompassing the direction that Council had provided in their discussions regarding the OPA No. 20.

No. 22-237

Moved By: Mark Widner Seconded By: Rick Cerna

THAT the Notice of Decision dated June 1, 2022 from the County of Elgin for Malahide Official Plan Amendment No. 20 be received.

AND THAT, given that the Township of Malahide has a visible and concentrated rural community which relies on horse-powered technology for farming, the Council for the Township of Malahide hereby requests that the County of Elgin respect the farming practices of this community and continue to allow the possibility to create smaller farm properties provided the size remains appropriate and sufficiently large to maintain flexibility for future changes in the type or size of agricultural operations.

AND THAT provided the County of Elgin can continue to respect the farming practices of this community, the Council for the Township of Malahide does not object to the modification by the County to its removal of Section 5 of the Malahide Official Plan Amendment No. 20, being an amendment to Section 2.1.6 of the Malahide Official Plan.

Carried

- Southwestern Public Health (SWPH) – Request use of Malahide Community Place for Vaccination Clinic

Director of Public Works Sweetland noted that SWPH had filled its facility request for these dates but that if required again this would be a standing approval.

No. 22-238

Moved By: Rick Cerna Seconded By: Max Moore

THAT the request of Southwestern Public Health Unit for use of Malahide Community Place for a vaccination clinic be received;

AND THAT the facility rental fee for the vaccination clinic be waived.

Carried

Councillor Cerna commented on the County's decision in Springfield relating to engine brakes signs being denied and what's a solution then to stop this. Mayor Mennill noted the County's position is that a sign can be put up but there is no provision to enforce it under the Highway Traffic Act. Mayor Mennill noted there was a sign in Summers Corners for years that is gone now and isn't aware if it did any good. Councillor Widner noted that this same topic was brought forth a couple of years ago and that there was no specific sign for this. There was a sign created by the landowner and installed in

Lyons but the County requested it be taken down but these signs could still go up if on private property.

Councillor Cerna inquired when the no parking signs were going to be installed in Summers Corners on Springfield Road by the taco food truck. Director Sweetland noted the report was sent to the County and coordination between the County, Township and community members in that area is still occurring. A report will be coming to Council for further consideration with various petitions for and against the no parking prior to a revised By-law being introduced and signage being installed.

Councillor Widner commented on the incredible turnout at the recent firework display in Port Bruce and recognized the firefighter's efforts to put on the community event.

CONFIRMATORY:

No. 22-239

Moved By: Rick Cerna Seconded By: Max Moore

THAT By-law No. 22-38, being a Confirmatory By-law, be given first, second and third readings, and be properly signed and sealed.

Carried

ADJOURNMENT:

No. 22-240

Moved By: Chester Glinski Seconded By: Mark Widner

THAT the Council adjourn its meeting at 8:59p.m. to meet again on June 16, 2022, at 7:30p.m.

Carried

Mayor – D. Mennill

D Menniel

Clerk – A Adams